ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 12, 2013
3:03 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Pete Higgins, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Benj am n Nageak
Representative Lance Pruitt
Representative Lora Reinbold
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Geran Tarr

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE BI LL NO. 16
"An Act relating to citizenship requirenments and an al cohol
inmpairment and drug testing program for applicants for and
reci pients of specified cash assistance."”
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 16

SHORT TI TLE: ADULT PUBLI C ASSI STANCE ELI G BI LI TY
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) KELLER

01/ 16/ 13 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/13

01/ 16/ 13 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 13 (H HSS, JUD

02/ 12/ 13 (H HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 12/ 13 (H <Bi |l Hearing Cancel ed>

03/ 12/ 13 (H HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

JI M POUND, Staff
Representative Wes Kel | er
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -1- March 12, 2013



PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented HB 16 on behalf of the bill
sponsor, Representative Keller.

RON KREHER, Director

Director's Ofice

Di vision of Public Assistance

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions during discussion of
HB 16.

JOY HUNTI NGTON

Tanana Chi efs Conference (TCC

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 16.

JEFFREY M TTMAN, Executive Director

Anmerican G vil Liberties Union (ACLU) of Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 16.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:03:13 PM

CHAIR PETE HHGA NS called the House Health and Social Services
St andi ng Commttee nmeet i ng to or der at 3:03 p. m
Representatives Higgins, Keller, Seaton, Reinbold, and Nageak
were present at the call to order. Representatives Pruitt and
Tarr arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 16- ADULT PUBLI C ASSI STANCE ELI G BI LI TY

3:04:17 PM

CHAIR H GA NS announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 16, "An Act relating to citizenship requirenents
and an al cohol inmpairment and drug testing program for
applicants for and recipients of specified cash assistance."”

3:04:39 PM
REPRESENTATIVE PRU TT noved to adopt the proposed committee
substitute (CS) for HB 16, |abeled 28-LS0059\C, M schel, 3/9/13,

as the working docunent. There being no objection, it was so
or der ed.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 2- March 12, 2013



3:05:01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER i ntroduced proposed HB 16, as the sponsor
of the bill. He said that the CS, Version C, offered a tool for
the Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS) to allow
direct intervention for alcohol abuse and illegal drug abuse to
reci pients and applicants of cash public assistance. He said
that "part of that mssion [for public assistance] was to
pronote self-sufficiency.” He offered his belief that self-
sufficiency and addiction were "at least in tension... there is
a problem we have to deal with there."” He stated that DHSS
woul d make an upfront determ nation for abuse of alcohol or use
of illegally obtained drugs when an applicant nmade a claim for
publ i c assi stance. The applicant would be required to sign a
sworn statenment that they were not abusing alcohol or using
illegally obtained drugs. He stated that the proposed bill did
not prescribe any action should there be a determination for a
problem as there were other neans for addressing this issue

He said that it was difficult to review the ramfications for

any changes. He suggested that this proposed bill would renove
the difficulty for this problem from the social workers. He
identified three areas of public assistance: gener al
assi st ance, adul t assi st ance, and t enpor ary assi st ance.
Summarizing the purpose for adult assistance, he read from AS
47. 25. 290: "to furnish financial assistance as far as
practicable to the needy, aged, blind and disabled persons, and
help them attain self-support and self-care.” He offered his
belief that this law reflected a concern for "the addiction
probl em " He opined that the proposed bill could have sone

ram fications that would need to be addressed.
3:09:31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER assessed that there was a conplexity for
the role of public assistance.

3:09:48 PM

JIM POUND, Staff, Representative Ws Keller, Alaska State
Legislature, directed attention to the sectional analysis for
Version C [Included in nenbers' packets]. He relayed that
Section 1 of the proposed bill would require that an applicant
must be legally in Alaska and the United States in order to
apply for assistance. He stated that Section 2 would require an
applicant for general relief to sign a sworn statenment that the
applicant was in the state legally, and would not abuse al coho

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 3- March 12, 2013



or use illegally obtained drugs. He offered an exanple for the
possible legality of clinical marijuana. He noved on to Section
3, which established that the applicant was subject to
investigation, if there was suspicion for the abuse of al cohol
or the use of illegally obtained drugs. He said that a refusa
to submt to suspicion based testing could be used during an
adm nistrative hearing or appeal. He said that Section 5
required the sane aforenentioned sworn statenents by an
applicant for adult assistance. He stated that although adult
assistance was primarily given to the blind and the elderly
senior citizens, drugs and alcohol were also abused by these
appl i cants. He said that many people who grew up "out of the
sixties were exposed to it in some shape, form or description
and we're the ones that are in that age group now,
unfortunately, so it's something that we have to look at in nore
of a perspective of, those are the people that may still be
using illegal drugs or abusing alcohol because of their life."
He noved on to Section 7, which stated that refusal by
applicants for adult assistance to submit to a suspicion based
test could be used in an adm nistrative hearing. He said that
Section 9 required the sanme sworn statenment regarding the use
and abuse of alcohol and illegally obtained drugs by applicants
for tenporary assistance. He said that Section 10 expl ai ned the
process for DHSS to contact a suspected individual and request a

drug or alcohol test. He said that benefits to an applicant
could also be restricted if there was false information on the
appl i cation. He declared that the principle of the proposed
bill was to give DHSS a tool which required an applicant to
state a standard of life. He opined that "this was a nmuch
better direction to go, and the bill definitely does not have a
problem as we wunderstand it, from our legal... wth a

constitutional issue."

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER, indicating Section 10, added that an
applicant could be drug tested if suspected.

3:15:34 PM

CHAIR HHGEA NS directed attention to page 1, line 1, Version C
and asked to clarify whether this was directed toward al
assi stance or just cash assistance.

MR. POUND replied that the proposed bill was directed at all
assi stance, and that cash assistance was just one aspect. He
said that the bill would cover distribution for any benefits by
DHSS. He stated that this was "not dealing with things Ilike
food stanps, and stuff like that, we're dealing wth the actua

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -4- March 12, 2013



dollars and cents that are handed to an individual to take care
of their lives."

3:16: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if there were any limtations to the
proposed bill, specifically the senior benefits paynment program
He asked why the proposed bill included the blind, but not the
seni or cash paynents.

3:16: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER explained that, as adult assistance for
the aged was included under public assistance, it would be
covered by the proposed bill when an application was subnitted.
He said that the proposed bill focused on cash distributions for

publ i c assi stance.

3:17:27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to AS 47.45.301, which
defined eligibility for the senior benefit cash program He
expl ained that an eligible individual could receive nonthly cash
assi stance paynents, if the household incone did not exceed
certain |evels. He asked if the proposed bill was targeting
some cash assistance prograns, but not others. He asked why
Al aska's permanent fund dividend (PFD) was not included in the
proposed bill, as it was al so a cash assi stance program

3:18: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER, in response to the suggestion for
inclusion of the PFD and the longevity bonus in the proposed

bill, said that he "did not have a clear answer to give you as
far as the distinction of why we just picked the public
assi stance section of law, and not those." He offered his
belief that the proposed bill had to do with building self-
sufficiency and offer people assistance to get "back on their
feet" "in their quest to becone productive citizens." He opined

that the PFD had a different prem se, to share the benefit from
state resources, and had not been intended "to put sonebody back
on their feet."

3:19: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD declared that the proposed bill was an
honorable attenpt to "try to get people, and catch certain

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 5- March 12, 2013



ci rcunst ances that naybe we need to be aware of." She asked to
clarify whether individuals would still be eligible for nedica
assistance if they were not able to receive cash assi stance.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER offered his belief that this was correct.

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD stated that "the state still wll be
fundi ng the consequences of drug abuse.”

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked that she address that to DHSS.
3:20:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK stated that it was difficult to respond
"in a good way," as any response would offend sonme people. He
acknow edged that there was a problemin rural Al aska, as there
were few jobs with few opportunities to be paid in cash. He
reported that often there were nultiple fanmilies in one house
and that the adults and seniors often received cash assistance,
whi ch benefitted the children and the grandchildren. He stated
that a discontinuance of cash assistance because of al cohol and
drug abuse would inpact many people, especially the elders and
the children, who needed the assistance. He allowed that, as
many assistance prograns targeted Alaska Natives in rural
Al aska, the proposed bill would inpact everyone in rural Al aska.
He voiced his agreenment that "we all nake choices, and al coho
and marijuana are choices." He shared that he had previously
participated in alcohol and marijuana usage, but that |ong ago
he had decided to no |onger partake. He decl ared that al coho
dependence was a disease, that this proposed bill would just
puni sh the people who needed assistance, and do nothing to stop
the disease. He offered an anecdote about his personal need for
assistance, and the difficulties for receiving it. He decl ared
his concern for the people of rural Al aska who depended on
assi stance at any given tinme, and he questioned how the proposed
bill would help.

3:26:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said that the proposed bill did address
t he chil dren.

3:26:29 PM

MR POUND directed attention to page 5, line 12, Version C,
whi ch read: "deny or termnate benefits, assign a protective
payee to manage cash assistance.” He said that this wuld avoid

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 6- March 12, 2013



specific punishnment to the children of those who abused drugs
and al cohol .

3:27:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK, in response, pointed out that the
proposed bill would punish sonmeone, but continue to send cash
paynents to another famly nenber. He offered to explain the
econony in Bush Alaska, where there was |ittle cash. He

expressed his concern for an unintended inpact from this
proposed bill.

3:28:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER expressed his agreenent that the proposed
bill did not fix the alcohol problem He declared that there
were prograns designed to deal with the alcohol problem but
that the intent of the proposed bill was to "give tools to the
Department [of Health and Social Services] and to the D vision
[of Public Assistance] so that when they know and can docunent
and find out when there is an al coholism problem or a drug abuse
problem that the other areas of services can be made avail able
to the people in the extent that they have them" He offered
agreenent that there was a struggle for success with these
programs. He declared that he did not intend the proposed bil
to cause harm

3:30: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD offered her belief that it was not the
state governnment's responsibility "to be giving out cash,

period, fundanentally." She opined that the proposed bill was
only identifying Alaskans as US. citizens, and sinply
"identifying people who are abusing drugs and alcohol, is it a

wise thing to be giving cash to people who are abusing al cohol
and drugs, is that wwse. W need to ask ourselves as a state,
is that the maximum return on our investrment for our public

resource dollars.” She suggested that the assistance noney be
invested, instead, into treatnent prograns. She opined that the
proposed bill had "sone real benefits to identifying where
problens are, and addressing them and | think this could be a

good thing for the state.™
3:31:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER stated, in response: "the spirit and the
heart behind what you're saying is exactly why |I'm sitting here

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -7- March 12, 2013



carrying the bill." He expressed his desire for ways to solve
t he problem

3:31: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked for conmments on the constitutionality
of the proposed bill, as her research had indicated that no
other simlar state |law had been found to be constitutional.
She relayed that Legislative Legal Services had indicated that
the commttee substitute was also unconstitutional, which she
attributed to "the suspicion less testing portion of it." She
stated that she had not been able to find any evidence anong the
proposed bill materials indicating that individuals receiving
public assistance were abusing drugs and al cohol. She cited a
study in Florida which revealed that only 2.6 percent of the
i ndi viduals receiving public assistance had tested positive for
drug and al cohol wuse, whereas 10 - 12 percent of the genera
popul ation had tested positive. She asked for a cost-benefit
analysis to the admnistration of the proposed program and
whet her the spendi ng woul d outwei gh the savings.

3:33:31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER replied that the proposed bill would not
spend any noney on prograns. He said that he was "stunned at
the fact, that they found that those on public assistance had
such a |l ow percentage that tested positive" to drug and al coho
abuse. He declared that he did not believe the data. He stated
that the proposed CS, Version C, had been witten to address the
constitutional issues.

3:34:40 PM

MR. POUND declared that the proposed bill addressed reasonable
suspi cion, not random testing, and was therefore not "suspicion
less.” He relayed that he had discussed this with Legislative

Legal Services, and was advised "that this does neet nuster."
3:35:35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK asked about the grounds for reasonable
suspi cion when applicants being denied benefits were in rural
Al aska. He asked about the cost benefit for going to a rura
village to test for reasonable suspicion of drug and alcohol
abuse.

3:36:52 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 8- March 12, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER, in response, said that the bill proposed
an application for assistance, in which an individual had to
state that they were a resident of Alaska, did not abuse
al cohol, and did not take illegally obtained drugs. He stated
that should any individual be found to have m srepresented
information, then the Departnent of Health and Social Services
was enpowered to do sonething, which included the renoval of
cash benefits. He said that the adm ssion by any person to
having a problem would allow DHSS to use the tools at their
di sposal to address the problem

3:39: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for a definition to the abuse of
al cohol .

3:40: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER, in response, said that it was "based on
the definition of the person signing the docunent."”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON declared that many people used a |ot of
al cohol, but did not feel that they abused it. He questioned a
| egal Iy binding docunent which asked for a sworn statenent wth

no standard, declaring that it was not enforceable. Ref erri ng
to Version C, page 4, line 31, he asked how an applicant for
tenporary assistance could make "a sworn statenent that nenbers
of the famly do not and will not, while receiving assistance
abuse al cohol or use illegally obtained drugs."”

3:42:29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER replied that he had no clear answer.

MR. POUND, in response to Representative Seaton, said that
tenporary assistance primarily dealt wth <children, and he
offered his belief that, in a household situation, the intent
was to keep kids away from al cohol and drugs.

3:43:10 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how a famly could nmake a sworn
statenent that kids were not partaking in drugs or alcohol. He

questioned page 5, line 16, noting that this could be determ ned
to be fraud with crimnal liability because a famly nenber

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -9- March 12, 2013



abused al cohol . He expressed concern for the consequences to
t he sworn statenent.

3:44: 48 PM

MR POUND replied that the proposed bill did not have any
crimnal intent.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER suggested that Legislative Legal Services
coul d answer the question.

3:45:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD expressed her agreenent for the need of
a definition to abuse. Directing attention to the suggestion by
Representative Tarr that the proposed bill was unconstitutional,
she declared "I have a real problem with that. | want soneone
to show ne where in our state or U S. Constitution that says we
must give cash assistance to those abusing drugs and al cohol.
That just gives ne (great pause that people keep saying
everything's unconstitutional. It seens |like a fear tactic to
me. Are we gonna interpret it at whim our constitution, or are
we gonna read it for it's neant [intended neaning], honestly I
don't believe our constitution says that we have to do this."
She expressed her belief that the Al aska State Constitution
declares that the resources were for the nmaxi num benefit of the
peopl e. She offered her belief that a |arge percentage of
Al askans woul d not support giving noney to people abusing drugs
and al cohol as a maxi mum benefit to the people of Al aska. She
suggested to identify the problem and to set wup treatnent
progranms, as education and prevention was the wser use for
fi nances. She declared that the current Departnment of Health
and Social Services budget was unsustainable, and that having
190, 000 Al askans on sone sort of public assistance was an issue.
She stated that the intent of the proposed law was to "get
peopl e i ndependent . "

CHAIR HHGA NS decl ared that the proposed bill was enotional, and
he did not want a constitutional debate. He suggested that
Legi slative Legal Services could assist with the discussion, and
he wanted to Iimt this discussion to the proposed bill.

3:47:26 PM
REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK declared that it was necessary to access

resources, as that would create nore jobs for rural Al askans
He confirmed that many people in the state had depended on

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 10- March 12, 2013



commercial fishing, but the lack of fish made this no |onger
vi abl e. He observed that nmany places in rural Al aska had
potential for devel opnent. He pointed out that many rural
Al askans did not have the means to go out of state to even apply
for a job. He offered his belief that it was best to
concentrate efforts on creating access to the resources so that
peopl e can get jobs. He asked how many people were taking cash
assistance and abusing the system He offered a personal
anecdote of his famly's dependence on public assistance, and
enphatically stated that the support from public assistance in
rural Al aska had all owed many nenbers of his famly to succeed.

3:52:20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER replied that the proposed bill was not
maki ng a statenent on public assistance; it was only attenpting
to deal wth substance abuse and self-sufficiency in that
cont ext . He expressed his agreenent that jobs were an answer,
and he offered his belief that the proposed bill did not take
away fromthat.

CHAI R HI GA NS expressed his agreenment that jobs were inportant.
3:53: 34 PM

REPRESENTATIVE TARR, in response to an earlier coment by
Representative Reinbold, established that it was a report from
Legi sl ative Research Services that established conflicts of the
proposed bill with the first, fourth and fifth anmendnents. She
offered to share that report with the nmenbers of the commttee.
Noting that the proposed bill did not have a fiscal note, she
asked for nore information on the cost to inplenment the proposed
bill, as it had cost other states with simlar prograns at |east
$1 mllion. She asked if a fiscal note to administer this
proposed program woul d be forthcom ng.

3:54: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER admtted that his earlier remark about no
cost for the proposed bill was only said in context for a
conparative cost to that of a program for substance abuse. He
stated "I am not going to divine what the departnent wll say

the cost related to this is."”

3:54: 52 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -11- March 12, 2013



MR. POUND informed the commttee that Departnent of Health and
Social Services had not had tinme to do a fiscal note. He
assured the conmttee that a fiscal note would be forthcom ng.

3:55:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the intention of the proposed
bill was for the drug and alcohol testing to be charged to the
i ndi vidual or to be paid froma general fund.

MR. POUND replied that Departnent of Health and Social Services
and the regul atory process would nmake that determ nation.

3:56: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed to page 1, line 8, of the proposed
CS, and asked for an explanation to the "full scope" of the
paranmeters for "not otherwise precluded from eligibility under
state or federal |aw"

3:56:54 PM

VR. POUND replied that DHSS would know the eligibility
requi renents, and he opined that "there are certain things
having to do with previous fraud or previous problens.”

3:57:49 PM

RON KREHER, Director, Director's Ofice, D vision of Public
Assi stance, Departnment of Health and Social Services (DHSS),
affirmed that there were sone potential inpedinents to the
success of the proposed bill. He directed attention to Section
1 and Section 2, which referred to the general relief assistance
program He explained that recipients of this program were the
nost indigent Al askans, as they had virtually no incone and
hardly any assets. He explained that there was alnost no cash
transfer to a recipient, and that the primary uses were as
vendor paynments for rent nmade directly to landlords and for
burial services.

4:00:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked to clarify that 90 percent of cash
transfers in adult assistance was for burials.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -12- March 12, 2013



MR. KREHER replied that this section referred to the genera
relief assistance program and that adult public assistance was
a different program

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked to clarify that the 90 percent of
the actual cash transfer in the general relief assistance
program was for burial services.

4:01:11 PM

MR. KREHER clarified that the remaining anmbunt was for renta
assistance, paid directly to a |I|andlord. He said that the
proposed bill did have "sonme positive sense to assist
individuals and recipients of public assistance,” and he
supported providing assistance for the greatest gain. He noted
that the general relief assistance program currently had
| anguage which required <citizenship; however, the senior

benefits program did not have a citizenship requirenent, an
oversi ght that he suggested needed resolution. He said that the
general relief assistance programwas for energent needs.

4:03: 55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked to receive the specific |anguage
for citizenship required by the general relief fund.

MR. KREHER replied that this was in regul ation.

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD asked how rmany cash assistance
participants there were in the state.

MR. KREHER replied that the general relief assistance was not a
cash assistance program but a cash benefit program which was
not paid to the applicant.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD expressed her desire for information on
all the other cash assistance programs, and referred to an
earlier conversation with M. Kreher in which he stated that
190, 000 Al askans were receiving public assistance.

MR. KREHER agreed to supply that information.
4:05: 15 PM
MR. KREHER stated that there were operational challenges to the

i nvestigation of applications and recipients. He noted that the
investigation process was intended to «consider eligibility

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 13- March 12, 2013



during the interview process, primarily for incone, rental
costs, and other simlar financial informtion. He directed
attention to the adult public assistance program which served
the elderly, the blind, and the disabled, and noted that it was
rare for the opportunity to nmeet a client face to face,
especially for those in rural Al aska.

4:06: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the rural applications were nade
on line, by mail, or with a fee agent.

MR. KREHER replied that an application could be nmiled, but
there was not yet an online application process. He said that
virtually all the programs required an interview, although this
did not have to be perforned face to face.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether nost rural applications
consi sted of a paper application, followed by a phone interview.

MR. KREHER expl ai ned that nore than 300 people in nore than 200
communities served as fee agents for the State of Al aska, and
that these agents received a fee for assisting individuals with
processi ng applications. He stated that the eligibility staff
woul d attenpt to nake contact with the applicant, if there was
m ssing information or the need for follow up.

4:08:17 PM
REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked who served as fee agents.

MR. KREHER replied that fee agents worked with DHSS eligibility
coordi nators in regions throughout Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked for nore information regarding the
background of an individual serving as a fee agent.

MR. KREHER replied that fee agents were individuals who were
interested in providing a community service, and were often
referred by a local village council, or a regional non-profit.

4:09: 55 PM

MR. KREHER directed attention to Section 6 of the proposed bill,
AS 47.25.450, referring to the Adult Public Assistance program
whi ch served the elderly, blind, and disabled of all ages. He
reported that the recipient could be assisted in application by

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -14- March 12, 2013



anot her i ndividual. He said that the opportunity to base
reasonable suspicion for drug and alcohol abuse would be
chal l enging, in many situation. He announced that the greatest
latitude and flexibility was wth the Al aska Tenporary
Assi stance Program which provided cash assistance to famlies
wi th dependent children. He explained that this program had
work requirenents and was tine |limted for assistance, and that
the departnent infrastructure provided case nmanagers and
support. He relayed that the Adult Public Assistance program
did not have the same infrastructure to support screening and
drug testing, so those would be additional <costs to this
pr ogram

4:12: 17 PM

MR. KREHER, in response to Representative Keller, said that
there were about 17-18,000 Adult Public Assistance cases for the
blind, disabled, and elderly. He said that there was usually
one adult for each case.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if there was cash assistance
distributed to "these 17,000 people."

MR. KREHER said that cash was sent to these individuals or to an
aut hori zed representative. Directing attention to the Tenporary
Assi stance program he said there were about 3000 individuals
and 25 percent of these cases entailed a non-needy relative
taki ng care of the children.

4:13:17 PM

CHAI R HI GA NS asked about the nonthly allocation

MR. KREHER said that he would supply the information.

4:13: 45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked, in regard to the 190,000 people
obt ai ni ng public assistance, how many received cash.

MR. KREHER replied that 60,000 were Medicaid recipients, and he
offered to research the remaining figures.

4:14: 46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked, assumng the proposed bill was
enacted, whether the applicants signing a paper would identify

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -15- March 12, 2013



a large nunmber” of individuals with alcohol and substance

abuse. He offered his belief that "it probably is a very
insignificant nunber we're talking to, conpared to, for exanple,
what | would suspect anyway, for the tenporary assistance
because of the category of people we're talking about, the
disabled...” He asked M. Kreher for his estimate to the nunber
of peopl e involved. He specul ated whether there would be any

probl em applying this to only one arena, instead of all three
He asked if this would be "getting back into the constitutiona
problens.” He asked whether the Adult Assistance program would
find evidence of a problem

4:16:11 PM

MR. KREHER replied that this required a |ot of specul ation. He
said that it was very difficult to ascertain between occasiona

use and abuse. He pointed out that alcohol abuse was very
difficult to test. He reported that a challenge was for the
referral process to confirm suspicion. He stated that it was
difficult to "measure the truth of a statenent at any one point
in time," as an individual my not have been using drugs or
al cohol while signing the statenent. He declared that the

nunber of alcohol and drug abusers anbng those receiving
assistance was no greater than the average nunber of abusers
anong all Al askans.

4:17:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK, referring to the 90 percent of assistance
paid for burials, asked about the paynments for the bal ance.

MR. KREHER, in response to Representative Nageak, explained that
he was referring to the General Relief Assistance program which
served about 1000 people. He clarified that 40 percent of this
group were very low income and received burial assistance funds,
whi ch accounted for 90 percent of the General Relief Assistance
program f undi ng.

4:19:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked to clarify that Section 1 of the
proposed CS referenced general relief, Section 5 referenced
adult assistance, and Section 9 referenced tenporary assi stance.

MR. KREHER clarified that Section 5 referenced Adult Public
Assi st ance. In response to Representative Tarr, he affirned

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 16- March 12, 2013



that her reference in Section 9 was to the Al aska Tenporary
Assi stance for Needy Fam |lies program

MR. KREHER directed attention to the reference of fam |y nenbers
on page 6, line 4, Version C, and said that about 25 percent of
the recipients of Al aska Tenporary Assistance program benefits
were non-needy relatives, those individuals who cared for a
child, but did not have a need of their own. Consequently, the
benefits were just for the child. He observed that the proposed
bill woul d subj ect t hose non- needy relatives to t he
investigatory process, as recipient was defined to include
everyone in the househol d, except children.

4:21:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked M. Kreher to validate the tota
nunber of recipients for public assistance in the state.

MR. KREHER replied that he would report the nunber of people in
the state who received a benefit from the Division of Public
Assi st ance. In response to Representative Reinbold, he said
that it was between 194, 000 and 197, 000.

CHAIR HI GA NS asked if that nunber fluctuated seasonally.

MR. KREHER expressed agreenment and said that "casel oads ebb and
flow' and this was a tine period for increase. He offered to
supply the exact nunbers.

4:23:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked if the nunber of Al askans receiving
publ i c assistance was conparable to other states.

MR. KREHER replied that he did not know.
4:23:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for nore information about the
protective payee, and if any unintended consequences could arise
fromthe designations.

MR. KREHER explained that a protective payee was assigned to
manage finances for someone who was not conpetent. He noted
that this was nost comon in the Adult Public Assistance
program and that it was nodeled after the social security
adm ni stration pr ogr am He shar ed t hat aut hori zed

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -17- March 12, 2013



representatives could also be selected by the famly for
representation on behalf of the househol d.

4:25:23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, referring to page 5, line 16, Version C
asked if this referred to al cohol abuse. He asked if DHSS m ght
assign a protective payee if a determnation for alcohol abuse
had been nmade. He asked what the consequences would be for the
appl i cant.

MR. KREHER, in response, observed that this penalty provision
had been inserted, but should be in another section. He said
that the consequences would be the denial of benefits to an
i ndi vidual with dependent children, and its subsequent effects.

4:28:45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked to clarify that although it had been
stated earlier by the bill sponsor that this |egislation was not
intended to lead to crimnal investigation, other existing

statutes could be interpreted to necessitate reporting if the
children were determned to be at risk.

MR. KREHER expressed agreenent that this could be a consequence.
4:29:26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked if the cash distribution could be
used to buy al cohol .

MR. KREHER replied that there was not any condition on the use
of the cash distribution.

4:30:28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said that he was determ ned not to enable
addiction while in the process of trying to help. He offered
his belief that it was necessary to determ ne whether a problem
exi st ed.

MR. KREHER replied that he encouraged a focus on the existing
progranms and services using the available resources and
controls. He allowed that the Alaska Tenporary Assistance
Program was an ideal program on which to focus this proposed
service to identify substance and al cohol abuse.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 18- March 12, 2013



4:32: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK stated that access to natural resources
woul d help the issues in the rural villages, as it would provide
jobs in rural Al aska. He pointed out that jobs in rural Al aska
woul d "help people to help thenselves.” He indicated that this
was the issue on which to concentrate.

4:33:52 PM
CHAI R HI GA NS opened public testinony.
4:34:16 PM

JOY HUNTI NGTON, Tanana Chiefs Conference (TCC), spoke about a
recent TCC presentation in Juneau regarding the Al aska Tenporary
Assistance for Needy Famlies prograns. She said that the
purpose had been "to get good information out there" and she
expressed her agreenment with Representative Tarr that it was
unwise to give noney to fund addiction and other social
ailments. She said that there was an enphasis on Al aska Natives
in the proposed bill and that TCC, as an operator of the Al aska
Tenporary Assistance for Needy Famlies program was dedicated
and commtted to al cohol and drug abuse education. She affirned
that TCC had inplenmented drug testing at the outset of the
program and that current policies enphasized awareness for drug
abuse. She pointed out that alcohol and drug abuse education
was a regular conmponent of comrunity awareness. She stated that
the success of the famly was integral to the prograns. She
listed job training and parenting classes as two reasons for the
drop in enrollnment in the prograns, as these trainings were
possi bl e because of the flexibility of funding to the program
She specified that addressing alcohol and drug abuse was just
one conponent of the larger picture to the program She asked
that support be given to enploynent and training prograns, |ocal
econom ¢ devel opnent efforts, and alcohol and substance abuse
treatment and prevention services. She asked that the conmttee

review the current drug testing efforts and she opined, "If it's
not broken, we don't need to fix it." She pointed out that $8.5
mllion was being cut from the behavioral health budget, which

was an integral part to the overall success of the prograns.
4:40: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD said that, as statute was nore powerfu
than policy, this proposed bill would reinforce the TCC efforts.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -19- March 12, 2013



She expressed her assunption that TCC woul d support the proposed
bill.

M5. HUNTINGTON, in response to Representative Reinbold, said
that the process was not a cookie cutter approach, but was based
on success with the participants. She stated that a variety of
efforts allowed for greater success. She pointed out that drug
testing brought an expense that would be difficult for the
program operators to assune. She directed attention to the
federal website for the program which stated that the purpose
of the program was to provide assistance and work opportunities
to needy famlies by granting states the federal funds and wi de
flexibility to develop and inplenment their own wel fare prograns.
She offered her belief that state funding to tribal prograns
should also respect this flexibility, as the native entities
enphasi zed the overall success and well-being of the famly.
She enphasized that addressing alcohol and drug abuse would
al ways be "a part of that picture.”

4:42: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD stated her support for the proposed
bill: “I'ma big believer in it, we do have a serious problem
with abuse in this state, we have serious abuse with al cohol, we
have serious drug abuse, and | think that screening them
identifying them and getting theminto treatnent, education and
prevention is the key."

4:43: 28 PM

JEFFREY M TTMAN, Executive Director, Anmerican Cvil Liberties
Union (ACLU) of Alaska, directed attention to witten testinony
whi ch had been previously provided to the conmttee [Included in
menbers' packets]. He confirnmed that the ACLU continued to
oppose the proposed bill and the proposed CS. In response to an
earlier remark by Representative Reinbold regarding the issue of
constitutionality of the proposed bill, he expressed agreement
that, although there was no requirenent that a state provide
certain benefits or prograns, once the state established a
program it nmust nmeet both federal and State of Al aska
constitutional requirenents. He offered to provide witten
testimony of case |law which stated that a forced search was not
constitutional. He declared that, although the CS was fashioned
as a suspicion based testing schene, the current schene did not
meet constitutional requirenents, as it was a coerced search

4:45:18 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 20- March 12, 2013



CHAIR HIGA NS asked if the ACLU would assist wth the
constitutional crafting for the proposed bill.

MR. M TTMAN expressed his agreenent to work with the |egislature

to make it constitutional. He reported that other states had
legislation for testing prograns that had been found to be
constitutional, avoiding violation of the Bill of Rights.

4:46: 16 PM

CHAIR HHGE NS | eft public testinony open

[HB 16 was hel d over.]

4:46: 45 PM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Health and Social Services Standing Conmittee neeting was
adjourned at 4:46 p. m

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -21- March 12, 2013



